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these embraced a considerable tract of land adjoining the
military reserve on the east, fronting in part on Swan Lake
and extending back to Stone Quarry Hill, to which was
given the pretentious name of “ Wisconsinapolis.” When
the capital of the State was being located, the embryo city
received six affirmative votes, to seven in the negative.
This proposition has been thought by some, unacquainted
with its natural advantages, to have been a preposterous
one; as a matter of fact it was a most eligible and appro-
priate location for the capital. Another village, called “ Ida,”
occupies the precise spot on Swan Lake, platted last year
as Oakwood, which promises to become a popular resort.
Another one on the south side of Swan Lake was called
“Winnebago City,” but better known in the east as “ Swan
Lake City,” and now much better known as “ Wardle’s
Farm.” -

While the officers hunted and fished, and speculated in
wild lands and city lots by day, and indulged in games and
festivities and theatricals at night, and the ladies knit and
crocheted and did bead work and conducted Sabbath schools,
and attended to their household duties as well as they could
with their surroundings, the soldiers stood sentry, and be-
tween times visited the sutler’s stores and trading posts,
and made merry generally by day and sang “Benny Hav-
ens, O!” by night. In brief, army life at Fort Winnebago
was very much like army life elsewhere. Athletics and
theatricals, games and races, relieved the tedium; and dis-
cipline and demoralization, vice and virtue went hand in
hand.!

1The celebrated English writer, Frederick Marryat, journeyed through
Wisconsin in 1837, and in his Diary in America (London, 1839, 2 vols.),
vol. 1, p. 191, records his visit to Fort Winnebago: ¢ Fort Winnebago is
situated between the Fox and Wisconsin rivers at the portage, the two
rivers being about a mile and a half apart, the Fox river running east, and
giving its waters to lake Michigan at Green Bay, while the Wisconsin turns
to the west and runs into the Mississippi at Prairie du Chien. The fort
is merely a square of barracks, connected together with palisades, to pro-
tect it from the Indians, and it is hardly sufficiently strong even for that.
purpose. Itis beautifully situated, and when the country fills up will be-



